
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk

 
 
 

DEED, TRUST AND 
OBLIGATIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
Councillor A R Lloyd (Chairman) 

Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor R M Currans 
Councillor M J Davis 
Councillor L H K Edie 
Councillor A Gaskin 

Councillor R A S Jones 
Councillor D Swinerd 

Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
 

Mr Tony Martin (Independent Member) 
Mr Stephen John Maynard (Independent Member) 

Mr Ken Moore (Independent Member)  
VACANT (Independent Member) 

  
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 
 

Tuesday 11 October 2022 
 

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
 
 

Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 
3 OCTOBER 2022 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 

 



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 11 October 2022 
 
Guiding Principles  
  
In its decision making, the Charitable Trustee is bound by a number of guiding principles:  
  
(a)  that it  acts  reasonably  i.e.  decisions should  be  within  the  range  of decisions which a 

reasonable body of trustees could have made;  
  
(b)  that it acts within  the powers conferred upon  it and  the established  rules for procedures for 

dealing with issues of the kind under consideration;  
  
(c)  that it acts in good faith;  
  
(d)  that it adequately informs itself in order to make the decision in question, including  a  

comprehensive  risk  analysis  and  where  necessary,  makes further  enquiries  and  where  
appropriate,  considers  legal  and  other professional advice;  

  
(e)  that it does not take into consideration any factors which it is not proper for it to take into 

account;  
  
(f)  that it considers any factors which it should take into account. 
  
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 

terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
the Chief Officer & Director of Corporate Services. 
 

 

 
3. Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2022 

(Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 
4. Urgent Items   
 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 

urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

 
5. Kidd Legacy's Trustee Annual Report & Accounts 2021/22 

(Pages 7 - 24) 
 

 
6. Children's Playing Field and Recreation Ground, Savoy Road - 

Trustee's Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22 (Pages 25 - 40) 
 

 
7. Hesketh Park - Trustee's Annual Report, Accounts and Annual 

Update 2021/22 (Pages 41 - 56) 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee held on 
Tuesday 12 April 2022. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A R Lloyd (Chairman) 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor D Swinerd 
Councillor Mrs. P A Thurlow 
 

 
INDEPENDENT 
MEMBERS: 
 

 Mr S J Maynard 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor R M Currans 
Councillor M J Davis 
Councillor L H K Edie 
Mr A Martin 
Mr K Moore 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 
 Sonia Collins – Head of Planning Services 
 Neil King – Council Surveyor 
 Sarah Cotton – Solicitor (via video link) 
 Alan Twyman – Democratic Services Manager 

 
 

32. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Currans and Davis. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members that Mr Estcourt had resigned as an 
Independent Member before the last meeting of the Committee but that the 
aim was to recruit a replacement in time for the annual meeting of the 
Committee in October. He also explained that two councillors who had 
previously served on the committee had ceased to be members of the 
committee as they were no longer part of a political group on the Council and 
that new appointments would be made at the Annual Council meeting in May. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Council’s Solicitor confirmed on behalf of the Head of Legal Services, that 
no Cabinet Member present was conflicted over agenda Item 5, Planning 
Application 21/01286/FUL, Land East of Lowfield Street, Dartford, 
Redevelopment by Bellway (Thames Gateway) Phase 5 or any other item on 
the agenda. 
 
Members were considering Item 5 in connecting with the Council’s role as 
Trustee of the Kidd Legacy Charity land in Central Park, and whether the 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

proposed development in Lowfield Street would impact on residents’ 
enjoyment of that charity land within Central Park for recreational purposes. 
The Council Solicitor advised that any Development Control Board Member 
present was not conflicted over consideration of Item 5 (Planning Application 
21/01286/FUL) that evening. It was noted however that no Development 
Control Board Members were present but Members were reminded that if they 
attended the Development Control Board as a substitute they would need to 
declare a prejudicial interest and leave the meeting during consideration of 
that item. 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

34. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26 OCTOBER 
2021  
 
The Committee considered the minutes of its meeting held on 26 October 
2021. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Deed, Trust and Obligations 
Committee held on 26 October 2021 be confirmed as an accurate record. 
 

35. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

36. LAND EAST OF LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD REDEVELOPMENT BY 
BELLWAY (THAMES GATEWAY) PHASE 5 - CONSULTATION FOR 
PLANNING APPLICATION 21/01286/FUL  
 
The Head of Planning Services reminded the Committee that it had been 
consulted, as Charitable Trustee on a detailed application (21/01286/FUL) 
for the demolition and redevelopment of 89 residential units on land 
adjoining the Kidd Legacy land in Central Park, which it had considered at 
its meeting on 26 October 2021. The Charitable Trustee had supported the 
proposed application subject to a number of observations which were 
detailed in the minutes of the meeting and which were set out in Appendix C 
to the report. The Committee’s main observations were: 

 
- Height: That 5 storeys in close proximity would result in shadowing of 

the Park at the common boundary; 
- Ecology: That insulated bird and bat bricks should be incorporated 

into the new construction; 
- Noise: That the noise impact survey should be reviewed and higher 

level triple glazing with improved ventilation be considered to ensure 
new residents are not impacted by activities in Central Park; 

- Balconies: That the developer be asked to restrict the placement or 
storage of unsightly items on balconies, including washing and 
bamboo screening, through lease terms; 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 APRIL 2022 
 

3

- Boundary Treatment: That the Planning Officer confirm the fencing 
arrangements for the proposed paths between Blocks Q, R and S at 
1.8 metres. 

 
In terms of these observations, these had been addressed in the report to the 
Development Control Board and the Head of Planning summarised these. 
Although the 5 storey building would involve some shadowing of the park, this 
would not result in significant harm to use of the park due to the trees on the 
boundary. There were no bats on the land that was subject to the planning 
application and therefore no requirement for mitigation in terms of the bat or 
bird population. In terms of noise, it was proposed that the developer should 
be asked to carry out a detailed noise impact assessment prior to completion 
of the building so that this should inform the specification for glazing. 
Concerns about the placement of unsightly items on the balcony was not a 
planning issue but the developer had advised they would have covenants in 
place enabling them to control what could be stored or displayed on balconies 
by the terms of the leases, and clarification had been provided on the fencing 
arrangements which would include a 1.8 metre boundary fence to the park 
and a separate boundary inside this around the amenity area. 
 
As a result of the Charitable Trustee’s observations, and other 
representations made, the planning applicant Bellway (Thames Gateway) had 
submitted a revised proposal for the demolition of existing buildings and 
erection of 84 residential dwellings with associated works. The revised 
application was subject to a further consultation and the Committee was 
asked for its views on the revised application as a near neighbour. 
 
The main changes to the original planning application were: 
 

 The number of units had been reduced from 89 to 84.  
 Parking had been increased above the ratio previously agreed under 

application ref: 19/00027/FUL. This included the creation of a new 
parking area at the Lowfield Street entrance which was now proposed 
to be amended to a vehicular crossover for emergency access only to 
ensure it is a secondary route for residents rather than the main 
pedestrian/cycle link for park users to the north. 

 No access was now proposed to be provided through the site to 
Central Park between Blocks Q, R and S. 

 The cycle/pedestrian link between Blocks I and S had been widened. 
 Ground floor terrace areas to Block S had been increased with 

defensive planting up to the park railings. 
 A green roof was now proposed on Block Q. 
 Additional details had been provided to allow a detailed assessment of 

overlooking/privacy between blocks within the development.  
 Matters such as refuse collection had been clarified. 

 
The Committee also considered revised plans, drawings and proposals for 
landscaping the boundary with Central Park and noted that Tree Preservation 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

Orders relating to a number of trees in Central Park adjacent to the site had 
been confirmed since the Committee had last considered the application. 
 
The Vice-Chairman sought clarification on whether the proposed installation 
of high quality glazing could lessen the risk to the Trustees receiving 
complaints of noise nuisance or the impact on the right to freedom of 
enjoyment. The Council Solicitor stated that legal case law on this subject was 
mixed but that it was likely that the quality of glazing would be seen as a 
mitigation. The Vice-Chairman felt that it was important to stress the 
Committee’s concerns about noise and the importance of high quality glazing 
being installed. He also sought more information on the ground-scaping from 
the Kidd Legacy Land and was advised that there would be 1.8 metre railings 
at the northern block, where there were some ground floor flats which would 
each have their own fenced amenity area and that land on the southern site 
would be landscaped.   He also asked about the ownership of the railings and 
was advised that the 1.8 metre outer railing would be owned by the Council 
and that it was not possible for tenants to interfere with this or to create their 
own entrances to the park. There would also be a boundary treatment inside 
of the boundary railings. Clarification was also provided regarding the trees on 
the site that were subject to Tree Preservation Orders.    
 
The Committee felt that the observations it had made on the original planning 
application at its meeting on 26 October 2021 were still relevant to the revised 
planning application and should be reiterated. The Committee stressed its 
ongoing concerns about noise and strongly endorsed the need for an 
enhanced noise impact survey to be carried out and for good quality glazing 
to be installed accordingly. It was also suggested that landscaping should be 
required to shield the ground floor flat amenity areas from sight from the park.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1.  That, subject to the observations detailed above and the observations 
made by the Committee at its meeting on 26 October 2021 which were still 
considered to be relevant to this planning application, the Deed, Trust and 
Obligations Committee acting as Charitable Trustee to the Kidd Legacy 
Land (part of Central Park Dartford), considers that revised planning 
application 21/01286/FUL is not likely to affect the use of the Kidd Legacy 
land as a public recreation ground; and 

 
2. That, subject to the observations detailed above, the Deed Trust and 

Obligations Committee, in response as a neighbouring occupier in the 
consultation process, supports the proposed revised planning application 
21/01286/FUL (as summarised in Appendix A to the report).  

 
 

37. LAND EAST OF LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD - REDEVELOPMENT 
BY BELLWAY (THAMES GATEWAY) PHASES 2 & 3 - BOUNDARY 
MATTERS  
 
The Council’s Surveyor advised the Committee that certain anomalies had 
been identified relating to interpretation of the legal boundary between land 
owned by Bellway (Thames Gateway) east of Lowfield Street, which was 
subject to development, and land owned by the Council and Kidd Legacy 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 12 APRIL 2022 
 

5

land. Plans produced by Bellway prior to Phases 2 and 3 of the development 
appeared to Officers to encroach slightly into the Kidd Legacy Land and areas 
of Central Park owned by the Council. A specialist boundary survey had been 
carried out to provide an expert opinion on the legal boundary but had been 
inconclusive due to the absence of some of the original boundary markers. 
The legal boundary line suggested by the surveyor had been rejected by 
Bellway as it had implications for the proposed development. Given the 
ambiguities that existed, and in an effort to avoid a costly and counter-
productive boundary dispute, the Council and the developer had sought to 
agree a definitive legal boundary acceptable to all of the parties concerned.  
The Committee, as Charitable Trustee, was asked to consider the proposed 
legal boundary with the developer and the Council. It was confirmed that no 
changes were being made to the legal extent of the Kidd Legacy land and that 
the parties were merely seeking to agree the precise legal boundary. The 
Committee was asked, specifically, to agree the proposed legal boundary 
between the Kidd Legacy land and land owned by the developer, marked A-B 
on the plan in Appendix B to the report. Once agreed by the Committee in 
respect of its land, and by the Council in terms of its land, the developer would 
arrange for an application to be made to HM Land Registry to record the 
agreed legal boundary.  
 
In addition, the Committee as Charitable Trustee was asked to consider giving 
temporary access to the developer to small strips of the Kidd Legacy land 
adjacent to the boundary by way of licence to erect scaffolding for the 
boundary works and for working space, during the works phases.  
 
It was noted that there would be no changes to the original boundary of the 
Kidd Legacy land and that what was being proposed would not involve any 
transfer of land but was merely a clarification of the legal boundary with the 
land owned by Bellway. The developer’s use of the land would be regulated 
by formal licence agreements to include a requirement to reinstate the land 
afterwards.  
 
The Committee registered its concern that the developer had already carried 
out works which had destroyed vegetation within Kidd Legacy land and was 
also concerned about the impact that the erection of scaffolding could have on 
vegetation, flora and fauna. The Head of Planning said that there were 
ongoing discussions between the developer, Planning and Parks 
Departments over the mitigations that should be put in place on both an 
interim and permanent basis as a result of developing along the boundary and 
the installation of the new boundary fence. The Vice-Chairman accepted that 
the developer would need to have reasonable access to the site but that this 
did not entitle them to destroy anything and sought clarification on what the 
developer’s rights of access actually were. The Council’s Solicitor explained 
that landowners sometimes had the benefit of express access rights that 
would be documented in the title but they may also be able to apply for a court 
order under the Access to Neighbouring Land Act 1992 where it was 
absolutely necessary to have access in order to carry out certain works. It 
would be possible to put provisions in the scaffolding licence to specify the 
restitution works that would need to be carried out once the scaffolding had 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

been removed and to limit the extent of the works during the period of the 
licence. It could also be possible to condition that restitution works should be 
to the satisfaction of the Council’s Parks Department, but that expectations 
would have to be clearly defined and an assessment made of the condition of 
the land before the scaffolding was erected. It could also be possible to 
condition that the developer should pay in advance for the restitution to be 
carried out by the Parks Department but that care would be needed to ensure 
that any up-front payment would fully cover this to the standard expected. 
 
The Committee reiterated that it expected the damage already caused by the 
developer to vegetation, flora and fauna on its land and any damage caused 
by the erection of scaffolding to be fully restored to a high standard, to the 
satisfaction of the Parks Department. It was also keen to ensure that the 
scaffolding was only in place for as long as it was actually needed and that an 
end date for the presence of the scaffolding should be inserted into the 
licence given to the developer.    
  
 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That, as advised by the surveyor, the Charitable Trustee notes: 

(a)  the position of the boundary line edged green on the plan, marked A - 
B (adjoining the Kidd Legacy land), on the plan at Appendix B to the 
report; 

(b) that agreement has been reached with Bellway Homes Limited on the 
legal boundary line; 

 
2. That the Charitable Trustee consents to the submission of an application to 

the HM Land Registry, to record the agreement reached with Bellway 
Homes Limited on the new legal boundary line; 

 
3. That following the submission of an application to HM Land Registry, the 

Director of Growth & Community, in consultation with the Head of Legal 
Services, be authorised to deal with any requisitions raised by HM Land 
Registry; and 

4. That, for the reasons detailed in para. 3.12 of the report, the Director of 
Growth & Community, in consultation with the Head of Legal Services, be 
authorised to grant a temporary licence to Bellway Homes Limited, for 
access to the Kidd Legacy land to enable the erection of scaffolding and 
working space, only for the duration of its necessary development works, 
and to agree conditions to ensure that this is carried out in a timely 
manner and that any vegetation, flora and fauna are restored to a high 
standard.  

 
 

The meeting closed at 8.05 pm 
 
  

Councillor A R Lloyd 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

 
THE KIDD LEGACY TRUSTEE’S ANNUAL REPORT AND 
ACCOUNTS 2021/2022 
 
Ward: Town 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To present the Trustee’s draft Annual Report and Accounts on The Kidd Legacy 

at Central Park Dartford (registered charity number 1134257) for the financial 
year 2021/22, and to recommend accordingly. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the [draft] Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts at Appendix A, be 

considered.  
 
2.2 That, subject to any comments made by the Committee, the [draft] Annual 

Report and Accounts for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, be approved. 
 
2.3 That the Committee Chairman be authorised to sign the Annual Report and 

Accounts on the Trustee’s behalf. 
 

2.4 That the Head of Finance be authorised to file the Annual Update for the 
financial year 2021/22 with the Charity Commission, on the Trustee’s behalf. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 All charities with income of over £10,000 that are registered with the Charity 

Commission are required to prepare a Trustee’s Annual Report and 
Accounts and make copies available to the public on request. However, only 
a brief Annual Update has to be submitted to the Charity Commission. 

 
3.2 The Charities Act 2011 highlights the requirement for charities’ aims to be, 

demonstrably, for the public benefit.  Trustees must have regard to the 
Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and respond appropriately 
in its work and its reporting to the public, through the Charity Commission.   

 
3.3 When assessing the public benefit of an individual organisation, the Charity 

Commission considers the following criteria: 

 what the organisation’s aims are, whether those aims are charitable 
and whether the aims are fully and accurately reflected in its stated 
objects;  

 whether each of the aims are for the public benefit and whether they 
will, or may be, carried out for the public benefit, taking into 
consideration the particular circumstances of the organisation;  

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

 the context within which the aims will be carried out, including what is 
relevant and appropriate for current social and economic conditions;  

 what identifiable benefits arise from the organisation carrying out each 
of its aims, having regard to any available evidence;  

 whether there is any detriment or harm that might arise from the 
particular organisation carrying out its aims;  

 who the organisation’s aims are intended to benefit, and whether the 
beneficiaries are the public generally or a section of the public;  

 where the beneficiaries are a section of the public, whether any 
restrictions on who can benefit are reasonable in relation to the 
organisation’s charitable aims;  

 where fees are charged for the organisation’s services or facilities, 
whether the effect of those fees is to restrict benefit only to those who 
can afford to pay the fees, or whether there are other opportunities for 
those people to benefit in some material way that is related to the 
organisation’s aims;  

 whether people in poverty are excluded from the opportunity to benefit; 
and  

 whether there are any private benefits to individuals or organisations 
(other than benefits people receive as a beneficiary) that arise from the 
organisation carrying out its aims and whether those private benefits 
are incidental. 

3.4 A Trustee’s Annual Report is a key document in explaining what a charity is 
trying to do and how it goes about it.  It provides the trustee with an 
opportunity to explain matters that cannot fully be explained by accounts 
alone and adds transparency and accessibility to the financial information 
that accounts provide. 

 
3.5 The [draft] Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22 are set out at Appendix A. 

As the charity’s income is now below the threshold of £25,000 per annum 
set by the Charity Commission, there is no longer the requirement for the 
Accounts to be formally audited, or subjected to external scrutiny by an 
independent examiner.   

 
3.6 The Committee is asked to consider the draft Annual Report and Accounts 

at Appendix A. Approval is sought for the Head of Finance to file the Annual 
Update for 2021/22 with the Charity Commission on the Trustee’s behalf.  

 
3.7 The Ordnance survey plan showing the site is at Appendix B to the report. 

 
4. Relationship to the Object(s) of the Trust 

The Object of the Charity is, ‘the appropriation and use of the land in 
perpetuity as a public recreation ground and for no other purpose 
whatsoever’. 
 

Page 8Agenda Item 5



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications for 
the Charity 

As discussed in the body of the report. 

Legal Implications for the 
Charity 

As discussed in the body of the report.  

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None  

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment None as a result of this report 
 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – [Draft] Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts for the 
year 2021/2022 
 
Appendix B – Ordnance Survey Plan 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File 
Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Liz Dobinson 

(01322) 343322 
Financial Services /  
Corporate Services 
Directorate 

N/A 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



  Appendix A

1 

 Kidd Legacy being part of Central Park Dartford Kent 
 
Sole Trustee’s Annual Report for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
1. Reference and administration details      
 
Registered Charity Number 1134257 
 
Charity’s principal address Civic Centre 
     Home Gardens 
     Dartford 
     Kent 

DA1 1DR 
 
Land Registry Title Number K915198 
 
Ward     Town 
 
Trustee  The Dartford Borough Council  
 
Independent Examiner Not appointed 
 
Bankers Lloyd’s Bank plc, 46 High Street, Dartford, 

Kent, DA1 1BY 
 
Solicitors No external appointment 
 
Investment Advisers  Not appointed 
 
2. Structure, governance and management      
 
Structure 
2.1 By an Indenture dated 28 September 1903 (the 1903 Indenture), an area 

of land adjoining Central Park Dartford was bequeathed on charitable 
trust, by Colonel Charles Newman Kidd, to the Urban District Council of 
Dartford and, on local government reorganisation in 1974, the trusteeship 
passed to The Dartford Borough Council, a local authority.  The 1903 
Indenture prescribes that the land will be ‘appropriated and used in 
perpetuity as a public recreation ground and for no other purpose 
whatsoever’ i.e. the land is to be held on trust by The Dartford Borough 
Council (the Council), for recreational purposes.  The land is commonly 
referred to, locally, as the Kidd Legacy land or Kidd Legacy charity (the 
Charity). 

 
The Charity is governed by a Scheme made by the Charity Commission 
on 16 February 2010. 
 

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

2 

 
Governance 
2.2 In order to be a charity, a body must be established for exclusively 

charitable purposes.  Whilst local authorities and charities often both have 
close interests in local topics, the Charity needs to be independent of the 
Council as local authority, in that decisions about the administration and 
operation of the Charity need to be taken solely in the interests of the 
Charity with a view to furthering its charitable purposes and for no other 
purpose. 

 
2.3 To avoid inherent conflicts of interest between the Council’s role as local 

authority and its role as trustee of the Charity and to safeguard the 
Charity’s Object, the Council has established a trustee committee known 
as ‘The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee’ (comprised of elected 
councillors and co-optees (independent members)) to operate and 
manage the Charity’s affairs, with the following functions: 

 
1. To be the body who, on behalf of the sole trustee, safeguards the 

Object, the Charity’s property, funds and the beneficiaries’ interests 
within the Guiding Principles referred to below. 

2. To ensure that the accounts and the general administration of the 
Charity comply with statutory regulations. 

3. To ensure that the Charity’s funds are not co-mingled. 
4. To do anything else, within the law, which promotes, or helps to 

promote, the Object. 
 
2.4 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has adopted a Conflicts of 

Interest Policy (approved by the Charity Commission) which is intended to 
assist the Committee in identifying conflicts, to avoid conflicts arising at all 
and, where conflicts do arise, to assist the Committee to manage those 
conflicts in order to avoid perceived and actual problems occurring. 
Provided that the Committee is mindful of its obligations on behalf of the 
Charity, is seen to act in accordance with those obligations and manages 
any conflicts of interest accordingly, there will not be bias in matters 
related to charity decisions.  The Committee is also aware of the Charity 
Commission’s conflicts of interest guide issued in May 2014.  

 
2.5 Elected Councillors, Co-optees and Council Officers are bound by Codes 

of Conduct.  Details of Committee members’ related party transactions are 
disclosed in note 1 to the accounts.  Committee members are required to 
disclose all relevant interests (disclosable pecuniary interests or prejudicial 
interests), register disclosable pecuniary interests with the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer and in accordance with the [Member] Code of Conduct 
(adopted 26 July 2012 [Min.No.35] as amended from time to time), 
withdraw from decisions where a conflict of interest arises.   

 
2.6 Council Officers keep under regular review the possibility of any actual or 

potential conflict of interest between the interest of the Charity and those 
of the Council in its corporate/local authority landowner capacity.  
Independent advice is commissioned when the need arises. 

Page 12Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

3 

 
Management 
2.7 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee complies with the following 

principles in the interests of the Charity (the Guiding Principles): 
 

(a) To act reasonably i.e. decisions should be within the range of decisions 
which a reasonable body of trustees could have made; 

(b) To act within the powers conferred upon it and the established rules for 
procedures dealing with issues of the kind under consideration; 

(c) To act in good faith; 
(d) To adequately inform itself in order to make the decision in question, 

including comprehensive risk analysis and, where necessary, to make 
further enquiries and, where appropriate, to consider legal and other 
professional advice; 

(e) To not take into consideration any factors which it is not proper for it to 
take into account; 

(f) To consider any factors which it should take into account; 
(g) To avoid conflicts of interest. 

 
2.8 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee’s membership during 2021/22 

comprised the following elected Councillors and (voting) co-optees: 
 

1. Councillor A R Lloyd   (Chairman) 
2. Councillor J A Kite MBE   (Vice-Chairman) 
3. Councillor Mrs. A E D Barham [until 28 April 2021]  
4. Councillor Mrs. R M Currans  
5. Councillor M J Davis  
6. Councillor L H K Edie [from 28 April 2021] 
7. Councillor T A Maddison [until 28 April 2021]    
8. Councillor A J Oakley-Dow [until 26 October 2021] 
9. Councillor D Swinerd  
10. Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
11. Mr R A Estcourt (Independent Member) [Until 26 October 2021] 
12. Mr A R Martin  (Independent Member)   
13. Mr S J Maynard (Independent Member)  
14. Mr K Moore (Independent Member) [from November 2021] 
15. VACANT (Independent Member) 

 
2.9 As a matter of law, the Committee members do not assume the individual 

responsibilities of trustees. 
 

Whilst the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has the ultimate 
responsibility for the conduct of the Charity and makes the strategic 
decisions as well as monitoring the performance of the Charity, it has to 
operate day to day management through Council Officers; this in particular 
applies to the physical maintenance of the Charity’s Land.  The day to day 
management of the Charity Land has been delegated by the Deed, Trust 
and Obligations Committee to the Chief Officer & Director of Corporate 
Services who is accountable to the Committee and it is the Committee’s 

Page 13 Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

4 

task to monitor that the Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 
discharges her duties to the Charity. 

2.10 The maintenance of the Charity Land is carried out by the Council’s 
‘Waste and Parks’ section, part of the Housing and Public Protection 
Directorate. 

 
Risk management 
 

2.11 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee considers the major risks to 
which the Charity is exposed, reviews those risks, and establishes 
systems and procedures to manage them.  The Committee considers the 
viability of investment returns on the permanent endowment to constitute 
the Charity’s major financial risk, and recent extreme volatility in world 
financial markets has demonstrated this risk.   

 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has delegated the 
management of the permanent endowment to the Council, where the sum 
invested benefits from the Council’s average rate of return on its 
investments.  The average rate of interest achieved by the Council is 
calculated at year end (as a percentage) and is independently verified by 
the Council’s investment advisers, Arlingclose Limited; this percentage is 
then applied to the sum of the Charity’s permanent endowment and its 
accumulated unrestricted funds.  The Charity’s funds are held entirely 
separately from the Council’s own monies. 
 
The risks associated with conflicts of interest are managed in accordance 
with the Codes referred to in sections 2.4 and 2.5 above. 
 

Training 
2.12 Induction and training are critical for the development of good trustees - a 

professional approach is expected at all times.  All Committee members 
have received an induction from an external facilitator and the Head of 
Legal Services, thus ensuring that they fully understand the Council’s 
charitable role, its operations, its staff and its ethos and values. The 
induction process also sets out what is expected of trustees by the 
charities, which are administered by the Committee, the law and the 
Charity Commission.  Committee members have been trained in the 
adopted [2012] Member Code of Conduct.   

 
3. Objectives and activities for the public benefit 
 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has referred to, and has had 
regard to, the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when 
deciding what activities the Charity should undertake in reviewing the 
Committee’s aims and objectives and in planning future activities on the 
Charity’s land.  In particular, the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee 
considers how planned activities will contribute to the Object.  
 
Summary of object The Object of the Charity is ‘the appropriation 

and use of the land in perpetuity as a public 

Page 14Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

5 

recreation ground and for no other purpose 
whatsoever”. 

 
 
Summary of main activities 
in relation to these objects  
for the year 2021/22 The Charity land is used for recreational 

purposes in accordance with the Object.  The 
Charity land is maintained to an appropriate 
standard, in keeping with the remainder of 
Central Park. 

 
 The use of the Charity land as a ‘green gym 

fitness park’ through the installation of green 
gym equipment on the Charity land, at nil cost 
to the Charity, has an identifiable public 
benefit to Dartford Borough residents who 
may not otherwise keep fit.  The ‘green gym 
fitness’ initiative provides equal and open 
access for all Dartford Borough communities 
to fitness and healthy active living.  It is 
considered that the ‘green gym fitness’ 
initiative complements and furthers the Object 
‘to improve the conditions of life for the 
inhabitants of Dartford’ and provides an 
added facility for the public benefit. 

 
 In line with The Dartford Borough Council’s 

(acting in its corporate capacity/as local 
authority landowner) overall vision for Central 
Park Dartford, environmental enhancement of 
the Charity land was undertaken in the public 
benefit and at nil cost to the Charity, by the 
siting of an Edwardian-style bandstand (to 
replace the original Edwardian feature), and 
the construction of footpaths to link it to 
Central Park. The bandstand has an 
identifiable public benefit to Dartford Borough 
residents and provides a new cultural and 
recreational venue to attract people into 
Central Park and the open spaces beyond. 
The programme of events includes quality 
musical events e.g. bands, orchestras etc., as 
well as other recreational events for local 
residents. 

 
  The Council, acting in its corporate capacity 

as local authority landowner, has assumed 
responsibility for the management, 

Page 15 Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

6 

maintenance etc. of the green gym fitness 
equipment and the bandstand.   

 
 The Council, acting in its corporate capacity 

as local authority/landowner, has agreed to 
lessen the Charity’s exposure to ongoing 
grounds maintenance of the Charity land, by 
subsidising any shortfall. 

 
Key objectives for the ensuing 
financial year 2022/23 
  Cultural and recreational events have 

restarted on the Charity land. These events 
will have an identifiable public benefit to 
Dartford Borough residents and will accord 
with the Charity’s Object. 

 
4. Measuring achievements and performance 
 
The Council aims to improve the quality of green space in and around Central 
Park Dartford and open up access to, and through, the Park. 
 
The environmental enhancements to, and around, the Charity land provide 
and/or assist in the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time 
occupation in the interest of social welfare, with such facilities being provided 
to the public at large, in accordance with the Object of providing a recreation 
ground, in perpetuity, for inhabitants of the Borough of Dartford. 
 
 
5. Financial Review 
 
Financial review The Income and Expenditure Account for the Charity for 

the financial year 2021/22 is appended to this report.  
This account has been compiled on an accruals basis, 
which matches the way the Council accounts for the 
income and expenditure.  

 
 The Charity received £275,000 from the proceeds of the 

sale of .089hc of Charity land (adjacent to Lowfield Street 
Dartford), in April 2004.  Subsequently, £5,000 was paid 
for an equivalent area of land (.089hc) in Central Park to 
replace that area of Charity land adjacent to Lowfield 
Street Dartford sold in 2004. 

 
 The sole trustee holds the sum of £270,000 as 

investment permanent endowment. 
 
The grounds maintenance of the Charity land during 
2021/2022 was undertaken by Dartford Borough Council 
as part of the general maintenance of Central Park.  The 

Page 16Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

7 

grounds maintenance contract was retendered in 2017 
and a new contractor was appointed from 1st January 
2018. The first full year of the contract was 2018/19. 
 
 
The current contractor’s schedule of rates differed from 
the previous contractor, which led to a reduction in the 
costs attached to the Kidd Legacy land. The contract is 
for 5 years plus a possible further 5 years, so the only 
increase will be an annual one in line with CPI. For 
2021/22, the charge was £4,573. 
 
Income received in 2021/22 comprised of hire income 
and investment income. The hire income was from 
Forrest’s Amusements for the hire of Central Park 
between 21/3/2022 and 28/03/2022.  
 
The in-house investment income rate used fell slightly to 
an average of 0.0627% compared to 0.0849% in the prior 
year.  Interest income in 2021/22 is very close compared 
to 2020/21.   
 
The insurance premium is slightly higher than 2020/21 as 
Zurich extended the insurance period by 3 months for 
free that year. In 2021/22 a full 12 months has been 
charged. 
 
At 31 March 2022, the Charity held balances of £335,875, 
made up of £270,000 permanent endowment, which is 
held and invested in order to produce income in furthering 
the Object and other sums (cumulative interest and other 
receipts). Spending any funds held as permanent 
endowment requires the consent of the Charity 
Commission. 
 

 
6. Declaration 
 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee, on behalf of The Dartford 
Borough Council as sole trustee, declares that it has approved the sole 
trustee’s Annual Return and further declares that there are no serious and/or 
significant incidents that it should have reported, but has not. 
 
Signed by the Chairman of the 
Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee 
on behalf of The Dartford Borough Council 
as sole trustee 
 
Signature  ………………………………………………………. 
 

Page 17 Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

8 

Full name  Councillor Andrew Ronald Lloyd 
 
Date   11 October 2022 
 
 

Page 18Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

9 

Kidd Legacy being part of Central Park Dartford Kent 
 
Income and Expenditure Account for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
Trustee responsibilities in relation to financial statements 
 
The Trustee is responsible for preparing the Trustee’s Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards.  The law applicable to charities in England and Wales 
requires the Trustee to prepare financial statements for each financial year, 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Charity and of the 
incoming resources of the Charity for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the Trustee is required to: 
 
(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
(b) observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP; 
(c) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
(d) state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, 

subject to any departures disclosed and explained in financial 
statements; and 

(e) prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the Charity will continue in business. 

 
The Trustee is responsible for keeping accounting records, which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Charity and enable it to 
ascertain that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the 
Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the 
Conveyances. The Trustee is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the Charity and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.  The Trustee is responsible for the 
maintenance and integrity of the Charity and financial information included in 
Trustee publications and on the Council’s website.  
 
The annual financial statement has been prepared on an accruals basis, 
which matches the way the Council accounts for income and expenditure. 
Accruals accounting means that income and expenditure are recognised as 
they are earned or incurred and not as money is received or paid. For 
example, if an invoice relating to March 2022 is expected to arrive in April 
2022, it will be accounted for in the 2021/22 accounts (the financial year it 
relates to), not the 2022/23 accounts (the financial year it arrives in). 
 
There is no requirement for the Charity’s accounts to be submitted to the 
Charity Commission, but they will be available for inspection by the public. 
 
 

Page 19 Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

10 

 
Income and Expenditure Account 
 Unrestricted 

 Funds 
 2021/22 

Unrestricted 
 Funds 
 2020/21 

Income 
 

  

Investment Income         212         292 
Trading Activities:   
          Rents       2,870             0 
Sub-total Receipts       3,082         292 
TOTAL INCOME       3,082         292 
   
Expenditure 
 

  

Grounds Maintenance      4,573      4,515 
Insurance Premium         999         758 
   
TOTAL EXPENDITURE      5,572      5,273 
   
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR 
THE YEAR 

     (2,490)     (4,981) 

   
Cash and bank balances at   
30 March 2022 (31 March 2021)    335,875    338,365 
   
Composed of:   
   Permanent endowment    270,000    270,000 
   Interest and other net income      65,875      68,365 
    335,875    338,365 
   
 
Notes:  
1. The Charity is being managed on the basis of an independent budget, 

which is being operated in line with Charity Commission’s 
requirements.  All income and expenditure is accounted for separately 
from the Council’s corporate finances. 

 
2. A separate bank account is kept for the Charity’s monies. 
 
3. The permanent investment endowment of £270,000 referred to in 

section 5 above, is part of the cash and bank balances shown above. 
The permanent endowment was originally £275,000, but reduced in 
2008/9 by £5,000 to £270,000, by agreement of the Charity 
Commission, to fund the transfer of .089 hectares of land to replace 
Charity land sold in 2004. 
 

 

Page 20Agenda Item 5



  Appendix A

11 

4. Other than the investment permanent endowment of £270,000, all 
other receipts and payments have been classified as ‘unrestricted 
funds’.  These are funds that the Deed, Trust and Obligations 
Committee is able to spend for any of the Charity’s purposes.  The 
£270,000 permanent endowment is capital, which is to be held and 
invested in order to produce income in furthering the Object.  The 
Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee must take care not to spend 
any funds held as permanent endowment without the Charity 
Commission’s consent. 

 
Signed by the Chairman of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee on 
behalf of The Dartford Borough Council as sole trustee 
 
 
Signature  ……………………………………………………………… 
 
Full name  Councillor Andrew Ronald Lloyd 
 
Date   11 October 2022 
 
 
                                                                                                                          
 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 
Related party transactions  
None declared 

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



K915198

K915198

TClark

@ A4°1:1,250

© 
Da

rtfo
rd 

Bo
rou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 1
00

02
58

70
  2

01
3, 

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 By

  T
he

 Pr
op

ert
y I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Te
am

, 

Kidd Legacy Land

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey 
map with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majestys Stationery Office
© Crown Copyright 2013
Unauthorised reproduction 
Infringes Crown Copyright and 
May lead to prosecution or civil
Proceedings
Dartford Borough Council 100025870  2021

Page 23 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

CHILDREN'S PLAYING FIELD AND RECREATION GROUND, 
SAVOY ROAD - TRUSTEE’S ANNUAL REPORT, ACCOUNTS AND 
ANNUAL UPDATE 2021/22 
 
Ward: Burnham 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To present the Trustee’s [draft] Annual Report and Accounts for the Children’s 

Playing Field and Recreation Ground, Savoy Road (registered charity number 
302723) for the financial year 2021/22, and to recommend accordingly. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the [draft] Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2021/22, at Appendix 

A, be considered.  
 
2.2 That, subject to any comments made by the Committee, the [draft] Trustee’s 

Annual Report and Accounts for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, be 
approved. 

 
2.3 That the Committee, acting as charitable trustee, notes the financial position of 

the charity as set out in paragraph 3.8 of this report. 
 
2.4 That the Head of Finance be authorised to file the Annual Update for the 

financial year 2021/22, with the Charity Commission, on the Trustee’s behalf. 
 

 
3 . Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 The playing field and recreation ground at Savoy Road are leased, at a 

peppercorn rent, by the Council from the National Playing Fields Association 
(“the Association”) for a thirty year term ending on 24 March 2028. The land 
was transferred by The Right-Honourable Courtney Charles Evan Viscount 
Tredegar and the Trustees of his Settled Estates to the Association as the 
freehold owner on 30 August 1928 on trust “…for the benefit only of children 
of school age in the Parish of Dartford in accordance with the charitable 
purposes of [the Association]”.  
 

3.2 All charities with income of up to £10,000 that are registered with the Charity 
Commission are required to prepare a Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts 
and make copies available to the public, on request. However, only a brief 
Annual Update has to be submitted to the Charity Commission.  

 
3.3 The Charities Act 2011 highlights the requirement for charities’ aims to be, 

demonstrably, for the public benefit.  Trustees must have regard to the Charity 
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and respond appropriately in its 
work and its reporting to the public, through the Charity Commission.   

Page 25 Agenda Item 6



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

 
3.4 When assessing the public benefit of an individual organisation, the Charity 

Commission considers the following criteria: 

 what the organisation’s aims are, whether those aims are charitable 
and whether the aims are fully and accurately reflected in its stated 
objects;  

 whether each of the aims are for the public benefit and whether they 
will, or may be, carried out for the public benefit, taking into 
consideration the particular circumstances of the organisation;  

 the context within which the aims will be carried out, including what is 
relevant and appropriate for current social and economic conditions;  

 what identifiable benefits arise from the organisation carrying out each 
of its aims, having regard to any available evidence;  

 whether there is any detriment or harm that might arise from the 
particular organisation carrying out its aims;  

 who the organisation’s aims are intended to benefit, and whether the 
beneficiaries are the public generally or a section of the public;  

 where the beneficiaries are a section of the public, whether any 
restrictions on who can benefit are reasonable in relation to the 
organisation’s charitable aims;  

 where fees are charged for the organisation’s services or facilities, 
whether the effect of those fees is to restrict benefit only to those who 
can afford to pay the fees, or whether there are other opportunities for 
those people to benefit in some material way that is related to the 
organisation’s aims;  

 whether people in poverty are excluded from the opportunity to benefit; 
and  

 whether there are any private benefits to individuals or organisations 
(other than benefits people receive as a beneficiary) that arise from the 
organisation carrying out its aims and whether those private benefits 
are incidental. 

3.5 A Trustee’s Annual Report is a key document in explaining what a charity is 
trying to do and how it goes about it.  It provides the Trustee with an 
opportunity to explain matters that cannot fully be explained by accounts 
alone and adds transparency and accessibility to the financial information that 
accounts provide. 
 

3.6 The Trustee’s [draft] Annual Report and Accounts are set out at Appendix A. 
The Committee is asked to note that there is no requirement for the Accounts 
to be formally audited, nor do they need to be independently examined as the 
charity has no income. 
 

3.7 The play equipment at the site was installed by the Council from corporate 
funds and, as such, will continue to be maintained corporately. The Accounts 
and Annual Update therefore do not include the annual maintenance costs for 
this equipment. 
 

Page 26Agenda Item 6



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

3.8 In 1997, the Council received, from Kent County Council, a commuted sum of 
£21,132 for the upkeep/maintenance of the land.  In 1998/99, an initial charge 
of £480 was drawn-down from the commuted sum for the maintenance of the 
land.  Since that time, this sum has been inflated by the relevant price index 
for the grounds maintenance contract, and in 2021/22, the actual costs would 
have been £3,329. However, the commuted sum was exhausted during 
2014/15, and the grounds maintence sum was paid by the Council in its 
corporate capacity. The Council will continue to pay the annual charges in 
relation to this charity for the remainder of the lease term until 24 March 2028. 

 
3.9 The Committee is asked to consider the [draft] Annual Report and Accounts 

for 2021/22 at Appendix A. Approval is sought for the Head of Finance to file 
the Annual Update for 2021/22 with the Charity Commission on the Trustee’s 
behalf.  

 
3.10 The Ordnance Survey Plan showing the site, is at Appendix B to the report. 

 
4. Relationship to the Object(s) of the Trust 

 
The land is held on trust “for the benefit only of children of school age in the 
Parish of Dartford in accordance with the charitable purposes of [the National 
Playing Fields Association]”.   

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications for 
the Charity 

The Charity’s commuted sum (£21,132 upon 
receipt in 1997), which had previously been 
drawn down annually in order to meet the cost of 
grounds maintenance at the site, was exhausted 
in 2014/15. The running costs of the facility will 
continue be met by the Council, in its corporate 
capacity, for the remainder of the lease term.  

Legal Implications for the 
Charity 

As discussed in the body of the report.  

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None  

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment None as a result of this report 

 
 

Page 27 Agenda Item 6



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – [Draft] Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year 
2021/2022 
 
Appendix B – Ordnance Survey Plan 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
     
Documents 
consulted 

Date / 
File 
Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Liz Dobinson 

(01322) 343322 
Financial Services /  
Corporate Services 
Directorate 

N/A 

     

Page 28Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

CHILDREN'S PLAYING FIELD AND RECREATION GROUND, 
SAVOY ROAD, DARTFORD, KENT 
 
Sole Trustee’s Annual Report for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
1. Reference and administration details      
 
Registered Charity Number 302723 
 
Charity’s principal address Civic Centre 
     Home Gardens 
     Dartford 
     Kent DA1 1DR 
 
Land Registry Title Number K784620 (Leasehold) 
 
Ward     Burnham Ward 
 
Trustee  The Dartford Borough Council  
 
Independent examiner Not appointed 
 
Bankers Lloyds Bank plc, 4-6 High Street, Dartford, 

Kent, DA1 1BY 
 
Solicitors No external appointment 
 
Investment Advisers  Not appointed 
 
2. Structure, governance and management      
 
Structure 
 
2.1 The children’s playing field and recreation ground at Savoy Road is 

leased from the National Playing Fields Association (“the Association”) 
for a term commencing on 31 March 1998 until 24 March 2028 at a 
peppercorn rent under the terms of the lease dated 31 March 1998. The 
lease has the benefit of the security of tenure provisions of the Landlord 
and Tenant Act 1954. The lease imposes obligations on the Council as 
Trustee to maintain the Charity Land. 

2.2 The freehold title to the Charity Land was transferred by The Right-
Honourable Courtney Charles Evan Viscount Tredegar and the Trustees 
of his Settled Estates to the Association on 30 August 1928 on trust 
“…for the benefit only of children of school age in the Parish of Dartford 
in accordance with the charitable purposes of [the Association]”.  
Restrictions were also imposed on charging for admission. When the 
lease was acquired by the Council, the Council became the trustee of 
this Charity. 

Page 29 Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

 

Governance 

2.3 In order to be a charity, a body must be established for exclusively 
charitable purposes.  Whilst local authorities and charities often both 
have close interests in local topics, the Charity needs to be independent 
of the Council as local authority, in that decisions about the 
administration and operation of the Charity need to be taken solely in the 
interests of the Charity with a view to furthering its charitable purposes 
and for no other purpose. 

 
2.4 To avoid inherent conflicts of interest between the Council’s role as local 

authority and its role as trustee of the Charity, and to safeguard the 
Charity’s Object, the Council has established a trustee committee known 
as ‘The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee’ (comprised of elected 
Councillors and o-optees (independent members)) to operate and 
manage the charity’s affairs with the following functions: 
 
1. To be the body that, on behalf of the sole trustee, safeguards 

the Object, the Charity’s property, funds and the beneficiaries’ 
interests within the Guiding Principles referred to below. 

2. To ensure that the accounts and the general administration of 
the Charity comply with statutory regulations. 

3. To ensure that the Charity’s funds are not co-mingled. 
4. To do anything else, within the law, which promotes, or helps to 

promote, the Object. 
 
2.5 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has adopted a Conflicts of 

Interest Policy (approved by the Charity Commission) which is intended 
to assist the Committee in identifying conflicts, to avoid conflicts arising 
at all and, where conflicts do arise, to assist the Committee to manage 
those conflicts in order to avoid perceived and actual problems occurring.  
Provided that the Committee is mindful of its obligations on behalf of the 
Charity, and is seen to act in accordance with those obligations, and that 
any conflicts of interest are managed accordingly, there will not be bias 
in matters related to Charity decisions. The Committee is also aware of 
the Charity Commission’s conflicts of interest guide issued in May 2014. 

 
2.6 Elected Councillors, Co-optees and Council Officers are bound by Codes 

of Conduct.  Details of Committee members’ related party transactions 
are disclosed in note 1 to the accounts.  Committee members are 
required to disclose all relevant interests (disclosable pecuniary interests 
or prejudicial interests), register disclosable pecuniary interests with the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer and, in accordance with the Member Code 
of Conduct (adopted 20 July 2012 (Min. No. 35) as amended from time 
to time), to withdraw from decisions where a conflict of interest arises.   

 
2.7 Council Officers keep under regular review the possibility of any actual or 

potential conflict of interest between the interest of the Charity and those 

Page 30Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

of the Council in its corporate/local authority landowner capacity.  
Independent advice is commissioned when the need arises. 

 
Management 
 
2.8 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee complies with the following 

principles in the interests of the Charity (the Guiding Principles): 
 
(a) To act reasonably i.e. decisions should be within the range of 

decisions which a reasonable body of trustees could have 
made; 

(b) To act within the powers conferred upon it and the established 
rules for procedures dealing with issues of the kind under 
consideration; 

(c) To act in good faith; 
(d) To adequately inform itself in order to make the decision in 

question, including comprehensive risk analysis and, where 
necessary, making further enquiries and, where appropriate, to 
consider legal and other professional advice; 

(e) To not take into consideration any factors which are not proper 
for it to take into account; 

(f) To consider any factors which it should take into account; 
(g) To avoid conflicts of interest. 

 
2.9 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee’s membership during 

2021/22 comprised the following elected Councillors and (voting) Co-
optees: 

 
1. Councillor A R Lloyd   (Chairman) 
2. Councillor J A Kite MBE   (Vice-Chairman) 
3. Councillor Mrs. A E D Barham [until 28 April 2021]  
4. Councillor Mrs. R M Currans  
5. Councillor M J Davis  
6. Councillor L H K Edie [from 28 April 2021] 
7. Councillor T A Maddison [until 28 April 2021]    
8. Councillor A J Oakley-Dow [until 26 October 2021] 
9. Councillor D Swinerd  
10. Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
11. Mr R A Estcourt (Independent Member) [Until 26 October 2021] 
12. Mr A R Martin  (Independent Member)   
13. Mr S J Maynard (Independent Member)  
14. Mr K Moore (Independent Member) [from November 2021] 
15. VACANT (Independent Member) 

 
2.10 As a matter of law the Committee members do not assume the individual 

responsibilities of trustees. 
 
2.11 Whilst the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has the ultimate 

responsibility for the conduct of the Charity and makes the strategic 
decisions as well as monitoring the performance of the Charity, it has to 

Page 31 Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

operate day to day management through Council Officers; this in 
particular applies to the physical maintenance of the Charity’s Land.  The 
day to day management of the Charity Land has been delegated by the 
Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee to the Chief Officer & Director of 
Corporate Services who is accountable to the Committee and it is the 
Committee’s task to monitor that the Chief Officer and Director of 
Corporate Services discharges her duties to the Charity. 

 
2.12 The maintenance of the Charity Land is carried out by the Council’s 

‘Waste and Parks’ section, part of the Housing and Public Protection 
Directorate. 

 
Risk management 
 
2.13The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee considers the major risks to 

which the Charity is exposed, reviews those risks, and establishes 
systems and procedures to manage them.  The Committee considers the 
ongoing maintenance of the Charity Land and the play equipment to 
constitute the Charity’s major financial risk, although this is mitigated by 
the Council taking on the responsibility for the charity land. 

 
The risks associated with conflicts of interest are managed in accordance 
with the Codes referred to in sections 2.5 and 2.6 above. 

 
Training 
2.14 Induction and training are critical for the development of good trustees - 

a professional approach is expected at all times.  All Committee 
members have received an induction from an external facilitator and the 
Head of Legal Services, thus ensuring that they fully understand the 
Council’s charitable role, its operations, its staff and its ethos and values. 
The induction process also sets out what is expected of trustees by the 
charities, which are administered by the Committee, the law and the 
Charity Commission.  Committee members have been trained in the 
adopted [2012] Member Code of Conduct.  

 

3. Objectives and activities for the public benefit 
 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has referred to, and has had 
regard to, the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when 
deciding what activities the Charity should undertake in reviewing the 
Committee’s aims and objectives and in planning future activities on the 
Charity’s Land.  In particular, the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee 
considers how planned activities will contribute to the Object.  
 
Summary of object The Charity Land is held “for the benefit only 

of children of school age in the Parish of 
Dartford in accordance with the charitable 

Page 32Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

purposes of the National Playing Fields 
Association”. 

 
 
Summary of main activities 
In relation to these objects  
for the year 2021/22 The Charity Land is used for recreational 

purposes in accordance with the Object.  The 
Charity Land and the installed play equipment 
are maintained to an appropriate standard 
and in accordance with the requirements 
imposed by the lease. 

 
 
 
Key objectives for the ensuing  
financial year 2022/2023  Ongoing maintenance of the Charity Land 

and play equipment. 
   
 
4. Measuring achievements and performance 
 
The Charity Land and installed play equipment will continue to be maintained 
to an appropriate standard and in accordance with the requirements of the 
lease. 
 
5. Financial Review 
 
Financial review The Charity’s Accounts for the financial year 2021/2022 

are appended to this report.  The accounts have been 
compiled on an accruals basis, which matches the way 
the Council accounts for the income and expenditure.  

 
 The grounds maintenance of the Charity Land during 

2021/2022 was undertaken by the Council as part of the 
general maintenance of its parks and open spaces. The 
annual charge for maintaining the Charity Land was 
£3,329. 

 
The commuted sum of £21,132, assigned to the Charity 
Land from sums received from Kent County Council to 
cover the cost of maintaining the playing field, was 
exhausted during 2014/15. The Charity now holds no 
funds. The Council, in its corporate capacity, will continue 
to meet the cost of the upkeep of the land until the lease 
expires in 2028. 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

 
 
 
 

6. Declaration 
 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee on behalf of The Dartford 
Borough Council as sole trustee, declares that it has approved the sole 
trustee’s Annual Return and further declares that there are no serious and/or 
significant incidents that it should have reported, but have not. 
 
 
 
Signed by the Chairman of the 
Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee 
on behalf of The Dartford Borough Council 
as sole trustee 
 
Signature   
 
 
 
 
Full name  Councillor Andrew Ronald Lloyd 
 
 
 
 
Date   11 October 2022 
 
 
 

Page 34Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

 
Children’s Playing Field and Recreation Ground, Savoy Road, 
Dartford, Kent 
 
Income and Expenditure Account for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
Trustee responsibilities in relation to financial statements 
 
The Trustee is responsible for preparing the Trustee’s Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards.  The law applicable to charities in England and Wales 
requires the Trustee to prepare financial statements for each financial year, 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Charity and of the 
incoming resources of the Charity for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the Trustee is required to: 
 
(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
(b) observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP; 
(c) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
(d) state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, 

subject to any departures disclosed and explained in financial 
statements; and 

(e) prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the Charity will continue in business. 

 
The Trustee is responsible for keeping accounting records, which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Charity and enable it to 
ascertain that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the 
Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the 
Conveyances. The Trustee is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the Charity and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.  The Trustee is responsible for the 
maintenance and integrity of the Charity and financial information included in 
Trustee publications and on the Council’s website. 
 
The annual financial statement has been prepared on an accruals basis, 
which matches the way the Council accounts for the income and expenditure. 
Accruals accounting means that income and expenditure are recognised as 
they are earned or incurred and not as money is received or paid. For 
example, if an invoice relating to March 2022 is expected to arrive in April 
2022, it will be accounted for in the 2021/22 accounts (the financial year it 
relates to), not the 2022/23 accounts (the financial year it arrives in). 
 
There is no requirement for the Charity’s accounts to be submitted to the 
Charity Commission, but they will be available for inspection by the public. 
 

Page 35 Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

 
Income and Expenditure 
 
 Unrestricted Unrestricted 
 Funds Funds 
 2021/2022 2020/21 
 £ £ 
Income 
Contribution from Commuted Sum 0   0 
Contribution from the Council 0 0 
      
TOTAL INCOME  0  0 
 
Expenditure  
 
Grounds Maintenance  0  0 
Other Miscellaneous Costs  0  0 
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURE  0  0 
 
NET EXPENDITURE   0  0 
 
Cash funds as at previous year end  0                  0 
 
Cash funds as at this year end  0         0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 
Related party transactions  
 
None declared  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36Agenda Item 6



  Appendix A

 
 
Signed by the Chairman of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee on 
behalf of The Dartford Borough Council as sole trustee 
 
 
Signature   
 
 
 
Full name  Councillor Andrew Ronald Lloyd 
 
Date   11 October 2022 

Page 37 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



K784620

TClark

@ A4°1:2,000

© 
Da

rtfo
rd 

Bo
rou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 1
00

02
58

70
  2

01
3, 

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 By

  T
he

 Pr
op

ert
y I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Te
am

, 

Savoy Road Playground

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey 
map with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majestys Stationery Office
© Crown Copyright 2013
Unauthorised reproduction 
Infringes Crown Copyright and 
May lead to prosecution or civil
Proceedings
Dartford Borough Council 100025870  2021

Page 39 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

HESKETH PARK - TRUSTEE’S ANNUAL REPORT, ACCOUNTS 
AND ANNUAL UPDATE 2021/22 
 
Ward: Newtown 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To present the Trustee’s [draft] Annual Report and Accounts  for Hesketh Park for 

the financial year 2021/22, and to recommend accordingly. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the [draft] Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2021/22 shown at 

Appendix A, be considered.  
 
2.2 That, subject to any comments made by the Committee, the [draft] Trustee’s 

Annual Report and Accounts for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, be 
approved. 

 
2.3 That the Committee notes that rental income arising from the lease of land to the 

Dartford Cricket Club Limited, is offset against the grounds maintenance costs 
incurred by the Council in its corporate capacity on the charity’s behalf.  

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1  At its meeting on 13 October 2011 [Minutes 41 and 42], the Committee 
considered a report on the then proposed Scheme of Management for 
Hesketh Park and the financial position of the charity. The Scheme of 
Management took effect from 9 November 2011. 

 
3.2  At its meeting on 25 July 2015 [Min. No. 5] the Committee approved the 

grant of a lease of the cricket pitch area to Dartford Cricket Club Limited on 
the terms already approved by the Committee at its meeting on 14 April 
2015 [Min. No. 23]. The lease was completed on 21 July 2017. The initial 
annual rent payable is £5,000 per annum, to be reviewed every 5 years. The 
term of the lease is 25 years, expiring on 20 July 2042.   
 

3.3 The Charity Commission requires charities to register with them if income 
received exceeds £5,000. This requirement will not be met in 2021/22 and 
unless further income is received it may not be necessary to register in the 
foreseeable future. The Council will monitor the situation and seek the 
appropriate authority if the position changes. The Council as Trustee 
remains subject to charity law and the regulatory powers of the Charity 
Commission. Accounts should be maintained and, as a matter of good 
practice, the Council as Trustee has prepared a Trustee’s Annual Report 
and Accounts in the same way as for the other charities for which the 
Council is Trustee. 

 

Page 41 Agenda Item 7



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

3.4 The Charities Act 2011 highlights the requirement for charities’ aims to be, 
demonstrably, for the public benefit.  Trustees must have regard to the 
Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and respond appropriately 
in its work and its reporting to the public, through the Charity Commission.   

 
3.5 When assessing the public benefit of an individual organisation, the Charity 

Commission considers the following criteria: 

 what the organisation’s aims are, whether those aims are charitable 
and whether the aims are fully and accurately reflected in its stated 
objects;  

 whether each of the aims are for the public benefit and whether they 
will, or may be, carried out for the public benefit, taking into 
consideration the particular circumstances of the organisation;  

 the context within which the aims will be carried out, including what is 
relevant and appropriate for current social and economic conditions;  

 what identifiable benefits arise from the organisation carrying out each 
of its aims, having regard to any available evidence;  

 whether there is any detriment or harm that might arise from the 
particular organisation carrying out its aims;  

 who the organisation’s aims are intended to benefit, and whether the 
beneficiaries are the public generally or a section of the public;  

 where the beneficiaries are a section of the public, whether any 
restrictions on who can benefit are reasonable in relation to the 
organisation’s charitable aims;  

 where fees are charged for the organisation’s services or facilities, 
whether the effect of those fees is to restrict benefit only to those who 
can afford to pay the fees, or whether there are other opportunities for 
those people to benefit in some material way that is related to the 
organisation’s aims;  

 whether people in poverty are excluded from the opportunity to benefit; 
and  

 whether there are any private benefits to individuals or organisations 
(other than benefits people receive as a beneficiary) that arise from the 
organisation carrying out its aims and whether those private benefits 
are incidental. 

3.6 A Trustee’s Annual Report is a key document in explaining what a charity is 
trying to do and how it goes about it.  It provides the Trustee with an 
opportunity to explain matters that cannot fully be explained by accounts 
alone and adds transparency and accessibility to the financial information 
that accounts provide. 

 
3.7 The Trustee’s [draft] Annual Report and Accounts 2021/2022 are set out at 

Appendix A. The Committee is asked to note that there is no requirement for 
the Accounts to be formally audited, nor do they need to be independently 
examined as the charity is unregistered. 

 
3.8 The Committee is asked to consider the Annual Report and Accounts  

2021/22 at Appendix A.  

Page 42Agenda Item 7



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

11 OCTOBER 2022 

3.9 The rental income for the charity from Dartford Cricket Club Limited will go 
towards the running costs of the charity, which include the grounds 
maintenance charges that, otherwise, are met by the Council acting in its 
corporate capacity. 

 
3.10 The Ordnance survey plan showing the site is at Appendix B to the report. 

 
4. Relationship to the Object(s) of the Trust 
 

The Charity Land is to be used as a recreation ground for the use of the 
inhabitants of Dartford. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications for 
the Charity 

As discussed in the body of the report. 

Legal Implications for the 
Charity 

As discussed in the body of the report.  

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None  

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment None as a result of this report 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – [Draft] Trustee’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year 
2021/2022 
 
Appendix B – Ordnance Survey Plan 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

  Liz Dobinson (01322) 
343322 

Financial 
Services /  
C S Directorate 

N/A 

Page 43 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



  Appendix A

1 

HESKETH PARK, DARTFORD, KENT 
 
Sole Trustee’s Annual Report for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
1. Reference and administration details      
 
Registered Charity Number Not applicable  
 
Charity’s principal address Civic Centre 
     Home Gardens 
     Dartford 
     Kent DA1 1DR 
 
Land Registry Title  K907660 
 
Ward     Newtown 
 
Trustee  The Dartford Borough Council  
 
Independent examiner Not appointed 
 
Bankers Lloyds Bank plc, 46 High St, Dartford, Kent, 

DA1 1BY 
 
Solicitors No external appointment 
 
Investment Advisers  Not appointed 
 
2. Structure, governance and management      
 
Structure 
 
2.1 By Conveyances dated 30 March 1904, 20 January 1909 and 30 

September 1913, the land that now comprises the majority of Hesketh 
Park (the Charity Land) was bequeathed to the Council on charitable 
trust by Everard Hesketh. Each of the Conveyances prescribes that the 
Charity Land will be ‘[used] for the purpose of a public recreation ground 
for the inhabitants of Dartford and not for any other purpose’. 

2.2 On 21 July 2017, a 25 year lease of the charitable land, which forms the 
cricket field in Hesketh Park, was agreed with Dartford Cricket Club 
Limited. A new pavilion building has been erected on adjoining land in 
the ownership of the Council in its corporate capacity. Additionally, 
another part of the charitable land is subject to a lease in favour of 
Hesketh Park Bowls Club Limited. 

2.3 The Charity is governed by a Scheme of Management made by the 
Charity Commission on 9 November 2011. 

Governance 

Page 45 Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

2 

2.4 In order to be a charity, a body must be established for exclusively 
charitable purposes.  Whilst local authorities and charities often both 
have close interests in local topics, the Charity needs to be independent 
of the Council as local authority, in that decisions about the 
administration and operation of the Charity need to be taken solely in the 
interests of the Charity with a view to furthering its charitable purposes 
and for no other purpose. 

 
2.5 To avoid inherent conflicts of interest between the Council’s role as local 

authority and its role as trustee of the Charity and to safeguard the 
Charity’s Object, the Council has established a trustee committee known 
as ‘The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee’ (comprised of elected 
Councillors and Co-optees (independent members)) to operate and 
manage the charity’s affairs with the following functions: 
 
1. To be the body that, on behalf of the sole trustee, safeguards 

the Object, the Charity’s property, funds and the beneficiaries’ 
interests within the Guiding Principles referred to below. 

2. To ensure that the accounts and the general administration of 
the Charity comply with statutory regulations. 

3. To ensure that the Charity’s funds are not co-mingled. 
4. To do anything else, within the law, which promotes, or helps to 

promote, the Object. 
 
2.6 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has adopted a Conflicts of 

Interest Policy (approved by the Charity Commission) which is intended 
to assist the Committee in identifying conflicts, to avoid conflicts arising 
at all and, where conflicts do arise, to assist the Committee to manage 
those conflicts in order to avoid perceived and actual problems occurring.  
Provided that the Committee is mindful of its obligations on behalf of the 
Charity and is seen to act in accordance with those obligations, and that 
any conflicts of interest are managed accordingly, there will not be bias 
in matters related to Charity decisions. 

 
2.7 Elected Councillors, Co-optees and Council Officers are bound by Codes 

of Conduct.  Details of Committee members’ related party transactions 
are disclosed in note 1 to the accounts.  Committee members are 
required to disclose all relevant interests (disclosable pecuniary interests 
or prejudicial interests), register disclosable pecuniary interests with the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer and, in accordance with the Member Code 
of Conduct (adopted 20 July 2012 (Min. No. 35) as amended from time 
to time), and withdraw from decisions where a conflict of interest arises.   

 
2.8 Council Officers keep under regular review the possibility of any actual or 

potential conflict of interest between the interest of the Charity and those 
of the Council in its corporate/local authority landowner capacity.  
Independent advice is commissioned when the need arises. 

 
 
 

Page 46Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

3 

Management 
 
2.9 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee complies with the following 

principles in the interests of the Charity (the Guiding Principles): 
 
(a) To act reasonably i.e. decisions should be within the range of 

decisions which a reasonable body of trustees could have 
made; 

(b) To act within the powers conferred upon it and the established 
rules for procedures dealing with issues of the kind under 
consideration; 

(c) To act in good faith; 
(d) To adequately inform itself in order to make the decision in 

question, including comprehensive risk analysis and, where 
necessary, making further enquiries and, where appropriate, to 
consider legal and other professional advice; 

(e) To not take into consideration any factors which are not proper 
for it to take into account; 

(f) To consider any factors which it should take into account; 
(g) To avoid conflicts of interest. 

 
2.10 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee’s membership during 

2021/22 comprised the following elected Councillors and (voting) Co-
optees: 

 
1. Councillor A R Lloyd   (Chairman) 
2. Councillor J A Kite MBE   (Vice-Chairman) 
3. Councillor Mrs. A E D Barham [until 28 April 2021]  
4. Councillor Mrs. R M Currans  
5. Councillor M J Davis  
6. Councillor L H K Edie [from 28 April 2021] 
7. Councillor T A Maddison [until 28 April 2021]    
8. Councillor A J Oakley-Dow [until 26 October 2021] 
9. Councillor D Swinerd  
10. Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
11. Mr R A Estcourt (Independent Member) [Until 26 October 2021] 
12. Mr A R Martin  (Independent Member)   
13. Mr S J Maynard (Independent Member)  
14. Mr K Moore (Independent Member) [from November 2021] 
15. VACANT (Independent Member) 

 
2.11 As a matter of law the Committee members do not assume the individual 

responsibilities of trustees. 
 
2.12 Whilst the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has the ultimate 

responsibility for the conduct of the Charity and makes the strategic 
decisions as well as monitoring the performance of the Charity, it has to 
operate day to day management through Council Officers; this in 
particular applies to the physical maintenance of the Charity’s Land.  The 
day to day management of the Charity Land has been delegated by the 

Page 47 Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

4 

Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee to the Chief Officer & Director of 
Corporate Services who is accountable to the Committee and it is the 
Committee’s task to monitor that the Chief Officer and Director of 
Corporate Services discharges her duties to the Charity. 

 
2.13 The maintenance of the Charity Land is carried out by the Council’s 

‘Waste and Parks’ section, part of the Housing and Public Protection 
Directorate. 

 
Risk management 
 
2.14 The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee considers the major risks to 

which the Charity is exposed, reviews those risks, and establishes 
systems and procedures to manage those risks.  The Committee 
considers the ongoing maintenance of the Charity Land and the play 
equipment to constitute the Charity’s major financial risk. 

 
The risks associated with conflicts of interest are managed in accordance 
with the Codes referred to sections 2.6 and 2.7 above. 

 
Training 
 
2.15  Induction and training are critical for the development of good trustees - 

a professional approach is expected at all times.  All Committee 
members have received an induction from an external facilitator and/or 
the Head of Legal Services, thus ensuring that they fully understand the 
Council’s charitable role, its operations, its staff and its ethos and values. 
The induction process also sets out what is expected of trustees by the 
charities, which are administered by the Committee, the law and the 
Charity Commission.  Committee members have been trained in the 
adopted [2012] Member Code of Conduct.   

3. Objectives and activities for the public benefit 
 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee has referred to, and has had 
regard to, the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when 
deciding what activities the Charity should undertake in reviewing the 
Committee’s aims and objectives and in planning future activities on the 
Charity’s Land.  In particular, the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee 
considers how planned activities will contribute to the Object.  
 
Summary of object The Charity Land is to be used as a 

recreation ground for the use of the 
inhabitants of Dartford. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

5 

Summary of main activities 
In relation to these objects  
for the year 2021/22 The Charity Land is used for recreational 

purposes in accordance with the Object.  
Parts of the site are leased to tenants who 
operate the cricket club and bowls club at the 
Park. 

 
Key objectives for the ensuing  
financial year 2022/2023  Ongoing maintenance of the Charity Land.  
 
 
4. Measuring achievements and performance 
 
Maintaining the Charity Land to an appropriate standard will be the main 
benchmark against which success will be measured. 
 
 
5. Financial Review 
 
Financial review The Charity’s Accounts for the financial year 2021/2022 

are appended to this report.  The accounts have been 
compiled on an accruals basis, which matches the way 
the Council accounts for the income and expenditure.  

 
 The grounds maintenance of the Charity Land during 

2021/2022 was undertaken by the Council as part of the 
general maintenance of its parks and open spaces.  
 
The Charity has a balance of £nil, as at 31 March 2022. 
The balance brought forward from 2020/21 was £601. 
This plus the income from Dartford Cricket Club was not 
enough to pay for the grounds maintenance and 
insurance this year. Therefore, the grounds maintenance 
charge was restricted so that the Charity did not become 
overdrawn.  
 
The insurance premium is slightly higher than 2020/21 as 
Zurich extended the insurance period by 3 months for 
free that year. In 2021/22 a full 12 months has been 
charged. 
 
The income stream, received from the lease with Dartford 
Cricket Club Limited is used to contribute towards the 
grounds maintenance costs, which have been borne by 
the Council in its corporate capacity (the Council in its 
corporate capacity resolved to meet these costs only 
because the charity had no further funds at its disposal). 

 

Page 49 Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

6 

 
6. Declaration 
 
The Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee on behalf of The Dartford 
Borough Council as sole trustee, declares that it has approved the sole 
trustee’s Annual Return and further declares that there are no serious and/or 
significant incidents that it should have reported, but have not. 
 
 
Signed by the Chairman of the 
Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee 
on behalf of The Dartford Borough Council 
as sole trustee 
 
Signature   
 
Full name  Councillor Andrew Ronald Lloyd 
 
Date   11 October 2022 
 
 
 

Page 50Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

7 

Hesketh Park, Dartford, Kent  
 
Income and Expenditure Account for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
Trustee responsibilities in relation to financial statements 
 
The Trustee is responsible for preparing the Trustee’s Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards.  The law applicable to charities in England and Wales 
requires the Trustee to prepare financial statements for each financial year, 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Charity and of the 
incoming resources of the Charity for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the Trustee is required to: 
 
(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
(b) observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP; 
(c) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
(d) state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, 

subject to any departures disclosed and explained in financial 
statements; and 

(e) prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the Charity will continue in business. 

 
The Trustee is responsible for keeping accounting records, which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Charity and enable it to 
ascertain that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the 
Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the 
Conveyances. The Trustee is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the Charity and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.  The Trustee is responsible for the 
maintenance and integrity of the Charity and financial information included in 
Trustee publications and on the Council’s website. 
 
The annual financial statement has been prepared on an accruals basis, 
which matches the way the Council accounts for the income and expenditure. 
Accruals accounting means that income and expenditure are recognised as 
they are earned or incurred and not as money is received or paid. For 
example, if an invoice relating to March 2022 is expected to arrive in April 
2022, it will be accounted for in the 2021/22 accounts (the financial year it 
relates to), not the 2022/23 accounts (the financial year it arrives in). 
 
There is no requirement for the Charity’s accounts to be submitted to the 
Charity Commission, but they will be available for inspection by the public. 
 
 

Page 51 Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

8 

 
Income and Expenditure Account 
 Unrestricted 

 Funds 
 2021/22 
       £ 

Unrestricted 
 Funds 
 2020/21 
       £ 

Income 
 

  

   
Rents 5,000 5,000 
Other Income 0 0 
TOTAL INCOME 5,000 5,000 
   
Expenditure 
 

  

Grounds Maintenance/other 
running costs 

4,525 5,000 

Insurance Premium 1,076 803 
   
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 5,601 5,803 
   
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR 
THE YEAR 

(601) (803) 

   
Cash and bank balances at   
31 March 2022 (31 March 2021) 0 601 
   

 
Notes:  
1. The Charity is being managed on the basis of an independent budget, 

which is being operated in line with Charity Commission’s 
requirements.  All income and expenditure is accounted for separately 
from the Council’s corporate finances. 

 
2. The Charity has no permanent endowment; all its receipts and 

payments have been classified as ‘unrestricted funds’.  These are 
funds that the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee is able to spend 
for any of the Charity’s purposes.  

 
Signed by the Chairman of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee on 
behalf of The Dartford Borough Council as sole trustee. 
 
 
Signature  ……………………………………………………………… 
 
Full name  Councillor Andrew Ronald Lloyd 
Date   11 October 2022 
 
 

Page 52Agenda Item 7



  Appendix A

9 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 
Related party transactions  
None declared 
 

Page 53 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



K907660

TClark

@ A4°1:2,500

© 
Da

rtfo
rd 

Bo
rou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 1
00

02
58

70
  2

01
3, 

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 By

  T
he

 Pr
op

ert
y I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Te
am

, 

Land at Hesketh Park

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey 
map with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majestys Stationery Office
© Crown Copyright 2013
Unauthorised reproduction 
Infringes Crown Copyright and 
May lead to prosecution or civil
Proceedings
Dartford Borough Council 100025870  2021

Page 55 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56


	Agenda
	at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

	3 Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2022
	5 Kidd Legacy's Trustee Annual Report & Accounts 2021/22
	Appendix A Kidd Legacy Annual Report to 31 March 2022
	Appendix B OS Plan for Kidd Legacy

	6 Children's Playing Field and Recreation Ground, Savoy Road - Trustee's Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22
	Appendix A Savoy Road Annual Report to 31 March 2022
	Appendix B OS Plan for Savoy Road Playground

	7 Hesketh Park - Trustee's Annual Report, Accounts and Annual Update 2021/22
	Appendix A Hesketh Park Annual Report to 31 March 2022
	Appendix B OS Plan for Hesketh Park


